
 

 

 

 

 
1 

 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

EDUCATION ADVISORY BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY, 14 OCTOBER 2020 AT 4.00 PM 
 

VIRTUAL REMOTE MEETING - REMOTE 
 
Telephone enquiries to Anna Martyn 023 9283 4870 
Email: anna.martyn@portsmouthcc.gov.uk 
 

 

Membership 
 
Councillor Suzy Horton (Chair) 
 
 
Councillor Frank Jonas BEM 
Councillor Terry Norton 
 

Councillor Jeanette Smith 
Councillor Judith Smyth 
 

Diocesan representative - Church of England  
Diocesan representative - Roman Catholic 
Teacher Liaison Panel representative 
 

(NB This agenda should be retained for future reference with the minutes of this meeting). 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 

 1   Apologies for absence  
 

 2   Declarations of interests  
 

 3   Minutes of previous meeting - 15 July 2020 (Pages 3 - 8) 
 

 4   School improvement (Pages 9 - 12) 
 

 5   Response to Covid-19 (Pages 13 - 16) 
 

 6   Portsmouth Education Strategy 2020 - 2023 (Pages 17 - 48) 
 

Public Document Pack



 
2 

 

 7   Dates of future meetings  
 

  Wednesday 10 February 2021 - 4 pm - location TBC  
Wednesday 14 July 2021 - 4 pm - location TBC  



 
 

 
1 

 

EDUCATION ADVISORY BOARD 
 
RECORD OF DECISIONS of the meeting of the Education Advisory Board 
held on Wednesday, 15 July 2020 at 4.00 pm as a virtual meeting.  
 

Present 
 

 Councillor Suzy Horton (in the Chair) 
 
Councillors Frank Jonas BEM 

Terry Norton 
Jeanette Smith 
 

21. Apologies for absence 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Robert Dare, Jeff Williams and 
Councillor Smyth.  
 

22. Declarations of interests 
 
Councillor Horton declared a personal, non-prejudicial interest as she is a 
governor at Craneswater Junior School. Councillor Norton declared a 
personal, non-prejudicial interest as he is employed at Mayfield School 
through a cover agency, his partner is employed at Mayfield School and his 
daughter attends it. Councillor Smith declared a personal, non-prejudicial 
interest as she works for Hampshire branch UNISON and represents support 
staff in Hampshire schools.   
 

23. Minutes of previous meeting held on 4 February 2020 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 4 February 2020 be 
confirmed and signed by the chair as a correct record. 
   
The Chair proposed taking agenda item no.4 (Ofsted inspections) after 
agenda items no.5, 6 and 7, as item no.4 contained exempt appendices. For 
ease of reference, the minutes will be kept in the original order.  
 

24. Ofsted inspections update 
 
RESOLVED that that the following motion be adopted 
Exclusion of Press and Public 
 
"Under the provisions of Section 100A of the Local Government Act 
1972 as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 
1985, the press and public be excluded for the consideration of the 
following item on the grounds that the report contains information 
defined as exempt in Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government 
Act 1972." 
 
Under the following exemption paragraph numbers: 
1. Information relating to an individual 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 
2 

 

2. Information that is likely to reveal the identity of an individual 
3. Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 
person (including the authority holding that information). 
 
Mike Stoneman presented the report.  Jo Peach presented the exempt 
appendix relating to the inadequate judgement given to Corpus Christi 
Catholic Primary School by Ofsted.  The school was judged to be inadequate 
due to safeguarding concerns, but there were also issues associated with the 
quality of teaching, leadership and governance.  The school has put in place 
an action plan and a new head teacher has been appointed.  An Academy 
Order was issued by the Regional Schools Commissioner.  The leadership is 
already stronger and they are now in discussions with another Catholic 
academy trust which looked promising.   
 
In response to a question about how COVID-19 might affect the plans, Jo 
Peach said that the new head had adapted the action plan and is focussing 
on phonics and maths. The Board wished the new headteacher well in her 
new role. 
 
In response to a question about attainment levels, officers said that 
assessment thresholds have risen and the authority had been hoping for a 
better set of results, but due to the pandemic all exams and assessments 
were cancelled.    
 
RESOLVED members of the Education Advisory Board noted the 
outcomes of the school inspections that were undertaken during the 
Spring term 2020, the continuing work that is being undertaken by the 
council to address the Inadequate judgement given to Corpus Christi 
Catholic Primary School last year and the plans by Ofsted to resume 
inspections in 2021. 
 
 
 

25. Returning to School - Summary of local arrangements and updates from 
the working group and workstreams 
 
Mike Stoneman, Deputy Director of Education, presented the report.  Sarah 
Christopher, PEP and School Inclusion Manager presented the section on the 
Emotional Health and Wellbeing workstream.    
 
In response to questions from members the following points were made: 

 In terms of schools wanting to be accessible for key worker children 
there has been a fairly uniform approach in terms of the desire to 
provide those places.  Any variability has been due to the particular 
circumstances of the school.  For example where a school has a 
number of teachers who are shielding or if there are space constraints. 
On the whole schools have done everything possible to admit key 
worker children, vulnerable learners and children of those year groups 
that the Government wanted to target after 1 June (primary), and 15 
June (secondary and post-16).  Alison Jeffery, Director of Children, 
Families and Education added that at the beginning of lockdown there 

Page 4



 
3 

 

were a handful of parents who contacted the local authority as they 
had concerns and these were resolved.  She had received few 
complaints or issues brought to her attention. Schools had been very 
resilient and had done a fantastic job.  She also wished to thank her 
colleagues during this period working long hours and wished to pay 
tribute to them.   

 All schools have made sure that eligible families have been able to 
access free schools meals for their children, either through the 
voucher scheme or through food parcels provided by the catering 
provider.   

 The baseline survey confirms the variability across schools in terms of 
home and digital learning.  The report would be circulated to the Board 
after the meeting.  St Edmund's were a good example but in other 
smaller schools the digital learning offer has been limited with a 
reliance on paper based packages and limited teacher feedback and 
assessment.  It was now important to see some consistency and share 
good practice.   

 Generally schools have been able to cope with the demand and use 
the teaching resources effectively.  Many did a rota system for 
teachers coming in to teach and others doing home learning, and this 
worked reasonably well.  Officers were not aware of any schools 
where children have not been able to attend school due to a lack of 
teachers.   

 A letter will be sent to all schools from the Leader and Cabinet Member 
for Education which will be sent this week to acknowledge the fantastic 
efforts of staff and give thanks.   

 The Teach Portsmouth awards have been postponed until March but 
there is planned to be a virtual version in the Autumn that will focus on 
the excellent work of schools during the pandemic.  Sarah Christopher 
added that officers are encouraging schools to send in examples of 
work they are doing at the moment and are also looking to offer the 
long service awards.   

 With regard to teacher availability for LA maintained schools the PCC 
HR advisors will be working with schools to ensure the right thing is 
done by every member of staff including vulnerable members of staff. 
For the academies it would be the MATs responsibility.  

 In terms of attendance, the indication is that schools will be focussing 
on welcoming back children and staff with a positive message.  This 
will be kept under review and the local authority will not be insisting on 
penalty fines where schools do not believe this is the right thing to do.  
The first half term after autumn will be focussing on welcoming 
children back and the school attendance campaign Miss School Miss 
Out is likely to resume after the October half term.  

 Ofsted inspections will not resume until January 2021.  Ofsted will be 
conducting 'visits' to collate intelligence about how schools are 
adapting to the changes.   

 Some schools are offering summer provision as they do every year but 
this is quite limited.  PCC is also working with Portsmouth Schools 
Sports Partnership and Connect 4 Summer which are schemes taking 
place and schools have been made aware of all schemes.  Sarah 
Christopher added that the Sports Partnership are providing some key 

Page 5



 
4 

 

worker places in the north, centre and south which are paid places.  
PCC has also commissioned 425 days of provision for children of 
vulnerable families at no charge to the families. Schools have 
identified families that they think will benefit from that.  In terms of the 
Enableability respite provision for families of children with SEN, the 
offer has been increased this year and families will not have to pay for 
this.  This will not be full time provision but it will give families some 
support and respite.   

 In terms of preparing for a potential second wave of the pandemic, the 
infection prevention group is doing a lot of work on this and there is a 
lot of guidance going out shortly to schools including information 
sheets and a flowchart.  Guidance has also gone out to schools about 
setting up arrangements for their year group bubbles and what to do if 
there is a positive case.  Alison Jeffery added that one of the reasons 
that the authority is leaning so hard into the digital learning strategy is 
to ensure schools are really well equipped to support remote access to 
education if there is a second wave.   

 
 
The Chair said it was important to look for the positives that have come out of 
the pandemic.  This included collaboration between schools and between 
schools and MATs, other partner organisations and the council which had 
been heart-warming and effective.  The other important thing to note was 
around attention to vulnerable learners with excellent systems set up around 
tracking and monitoring them.  It had been a safety first approach and working 
with the Director of Public Health has been a brilliant addition to the 
collaboration. The Chair thanked Mike and his team for the report.  
 
RESOLVED members of the Education Advisory Board noted 
the considerable work that has taken place across the city to: 
 

 Support schools, children and their families in order that more 
children can return to school during the remainder of the 2019/20 
academic year. 

 Prepare plans for the return of all pupils to school from 
September 2020. 

 
26. School improvement update 

 
Jo Peach, Head of School Improvement introduced the report.  She explained 
that since the last meeting officers have continued to work on the reading and 
literacy project and a number of schools were involved with this.  They had 
just reached the stage where they were beginning to implement this in 
schools after developing plans when schools closed because of the COVID-
19 pandemic.  Schools were then focussed on other matters such as 
operational matters and providing home schooling support.  This meant that 
the authority had to step back from the planned priorities and bring in other 
ones, and concentrate on helping schools with their own priorities.   
 
Officers had worked with schools on home and blended learning which was 
new for a number of schools.  Officers had to initially establish a baseline and 

Page 6



 
5 

 

are now building a programme based on this.  The baseline report would be 
circulated to the Board after the meeting.  Jo advised that every school is 
offering some form of home learning but often it is just signalling to 
parents/children what there is available.  
 
There had been really strong communication with parents through this period.  
Every school has communicated digitally with every child and where they had 
not this had been escalated.  Jo wished to pay tribute to the hard work of 
schools that had kept their virtual communities going, such as virtual dance 
competitions, to bring people together.  Access to internet and a suitable 
device has been variable; access to a smart phone is not enough.  There is a 
worry that very young children should not be spending too much time on a 
screen and teachers had been massively creative to find other ways of 
learning.  Jo said she had been really impressed with how quickly teachers 
have learnt new techniques for teaching.  Almost all secondary schools and 
colleges had the technology in place such as Google classrooms which is 
supervised remotely, and it had been more difficult for schools where that 
technology was not already in place.  
 
A great deal of work had gone on in the background regarding what the 
curriculum will look like when children return in September.  It was impossible 
to catch up on the work missed in the months schools were closed so 
teachers need to slim down the curriculum and focus on which areas matter 
most.  Schools had been phenomenal in how they had approached this. It 
was very difficult as teachers do not know what they are aiming for at the end 
of 2021 in terms of assessment systems.  It was likely that GSCEs would be 
slimmed down but these are all moveable feasts and to plan the curriculum 
has been very hard.   
 
The authority had also been holding virtual support and training for those 
schools who needed it.  Jo finally wished to pay tribute to EMAS and the 
music service who have become 'digital pioneers' by delivering their service 
virtually.   
 
The Chair said that it was really positive to see the improvements that have 
happened.  The Chair wished to give thanks to Jo Peach for all her hard work 
as she would be retiring next week.  Alison Jeffery also wished to place on 
record her thanks to Jo for the huge contribution she had made to education 
in the city. 
 
The Chair also thanked all officers within the Education directorate for their 
phenomenal levels of work during this challenging time.  
 
RESOLVED the Education Advisory Board noted the improvements in 
2019-20 (and the impact Covid-19 / school closures had had on school 
improvement plans); the work of the Head of School Improvement since 
March 2020; and plans for 2020-21. 
 

27. Dates of future meetings 
 
Members of the Board noted the dates of the next meetings as follows: 

Page 7



 
6 

 

 Wednesday 14 October at 4pm 

 Wednesday 10 February 2021 at 4pm 

 Wednesday 14 July 2021 at 4pm 
 
 
The meeting concluded at 5.40 pm. 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Councillor Suzy Horton 
Chair 

 

 

Page 8



 

1 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

Meeting: 
 
Subject: 

Education Advisory Board 
 
School Improvement summary 
 

Date: 
 
Report from: 
 
Report by: 
 

14th October 2020 
 
Alison Jeffery,  Director of Children, Families and Education 
 
Debbie Anderson, Head of School Improvement and Early 
Years 

 

 
1. Purpose of report 
  

 1.1 This report sets out how we will prioritise support for LA maintained 
schools and the range and purpose of school improvement activities for 
2020 -2021. 

  
2. Recommendations 

  
 2.1 It is recommended that members of the Education Advisory Board 

note the school improvement prioritisation and support for 2020-21. 
 
3. Background 
 

3.1 We currently have 19 primary schools, 1 secondary school and 1 all-
through school that are LA maintained.   

 
3.2 In terms of Ofsted judgement categories, 2 schools are judged to be  

outstanding, 1 requires improvement, 1 inadequate and the remainder are 
good. 
 

3.3 Previously, the Portsmouth Education Partnership dashboard of 
performance information has been used in conjunction with local 
intelligence and requests from schools themselves to prioritise school 
improvement support.  This has not always been well received by schools, 
even when designed as ‘a starting point for a conversation’.  It is 
considered by many school leaders to be a crude tool, which does not 
take into account the context of their local situation and other factors.  This 
viewpoint is acknowledged by the Local Authority but clearly, the data 
available has provided an initial indicator of school performance and 
whether support may be required. 

 
3.4 Due to Covid-19, no statutory assessments were undertaken at the end of 

the 2019-2020 school year.  Although schools were invited to submit data 
to the Information Services team this is for the sole use of schools only 
and not for any external partner to judge school performance.  As a result, 
there will be no PEP dashboards this year.  

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



 

2 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 
3.5 Therefore, the Boards of Portsmouth Education Partnership and Local 

Authority Head of School Improvement and Early Years are looking to 
establish an agreed, transparent and coherent set of criteria that will 
enable proportional use of available resources and a positive reception 
from school leaders, such as:  

 

 Ofsted category & imminence of next inspection 

 New Head teacher/Senior leadership in post 

 Historic data/performance information / trends (2017-2019) & variation 
between subjects. Particular attention will be given to how progress for 
children compares with progress in schools across the country which 
have profiles similar to our schools, using established benchmarking 
tools. 

 Schools plans to achieve aspirational targets 

 Response to DfE guidance specifically remote learning and provision 
for blended and/or home learning, use of Catch-Up Premium  

 
4.              Rationale 
 

4.1     With the conversion to academy status of approximately two-thirds of 
schools in the Local Authority, PCC is no longer able to have the luxury of 
an extensive school improvement team, with officers to undertake the 
range of work as listed below.  Resources from central government have 
instead been devolved to other bodies, such as the Teaching School 
Council.  The self-improving school-led system is at the heart of the 
government’s vision for education in England.  This means that schools 
are being empowered to make decisions about how to improve and to 
work collaboratively to support each other to do so and that local authority 
resources must be targeted efficiently and effectively. 
 
a) Ofsted - the role of the Office for Standards in Education (Ofsted) is to 

make sure that organisations providing education, training and care 
services in England do so to a high standard for children and 
students.  Schools and appropriate bodies are accountable for the use 
of public money and the impact of Ofsted judgements are far ranging, 
from influencing parental choice to confirmation of the effectiveness of 
the standard of education and safeguarding practices provided.  

b) New leadership - a change of leadership in an educational 
organisation is a pivotal time and needs to be supported and 
managed so that it does not destabilise the progress of improvement. 

c) Performance over time is an indicator of the standards of achievement 
and the quality of teaching and learning.  Particularly where there are 
trends or real inconsistencies, and/or significant divergence from 
levels of progress achieved in similar schools elsewhere in the 
country, then this becomes a focus for prompting questions about 
effectiveness. 

d) Schools have development and improvement plans, which set out 
priorities with measures, and actions to be taken to achieve the 

Page 10



 

3 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

success criteria along with monitoring and evaluation.  However, it is 
the review and challenge of these plans and support that is crucial to 
ensuring they have the desired impact on outcomes and achievement.  

e) During the Covid-19 pandemic schools have had to become 
responsive to an ever-changing situation and learn to work in new and 
different ways that support the continuing education of children and 
young people.  Their responses to remote learning and the efficient 
use of the Catch-Up Premium must be considered in relation to the 
determination that this crisis will not impinge upon the high quality 
education that is deserved throughout Portsmouth.  

 
5. Range and purpose of support  
 
 5.1 The range and purpose of support is set out below:  
  

a) The Head of School Improvement and Early Years locally will: 
i. Play a key role in the newly established School Leadership and 

Effectiveness Board, which replaces the previous School 
Improvement Board (as illustrated on the PEP structure diagram 
with in the Education Strategy). 

ii. Support, challenge and develop our head teachers e.g. provide 
benchmark and target setting data (such as Fisher Family Trust), 
review school plans and the actions to achieve aspirational targets, 
facilitate induction procedures, pairing new head teachers to 
Portsmouth with an experienced peer colleague, devise a 
leadership development programme that ensures our school 
leaders have continuing professional development and support to 
undertake the complex job that they fulfil. 

iii. Support Local Governing Boards in the recruitment of new school 
leaders.  Unless, we have thorough and robust recruitment 
processes we will not be able to appoint head teachers with the 
necessary skills, qualities and resilience to meet the needs of our 
raised expectations.  

iv. Ensure that chairs of governors are equipped to fulfil their 
accountability role of 'critical friend' to our school leaders, thus 
strengthening schools' leadership and management.  

v. Provide support, before, during and after Ofsted inspections.  
Understanding of the Education Inspection Framework is vital to 
enable schools to demonstrate their effectiveness against the 
criteria in the evaluation schedule, as is empowering school 
leaders at all levels to confidently manage the process.  

vi. Organise bespoke packages (conducting reviews, assigning 
school improvement partners, joining up services, commissioning 
external support, including in projects and initiatives).  
 

b) Vital and effective links will be sustained or established with the following 
partners, working through or beyond the Portsmouth Education 
Partnership: 

Page 11



 

4 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

i. Local teaching school alliances i.e. Portsmouth Teaching School 
Alliance. 

ii. Local subject specialist hubs i.e. HISP Research School, Solent 
Maths Hub, Springhill English Hub. 

iii. Forthcoming developments, such as Behaviour Hubs and 
Teaching School Hubs. 

iv. The Regional School Commissioners. 
v. Ofsted. 

 
6. Intended impact 2021 

 
6.1 Intended impact is summarised as follows: 
 

 LA maintained schools are clear about the necessity to utilise 
comparative benchmarking, such as FFT50. The new PEP education 
strategy sets an ambition that all schools should be supported to set a 
target where necessary to achieve a level of progress for children at least 
equivalent to the average for schools in a comparable groups of schools 
nationally. All LA schools will be supported to develop improvement plans 
with that aim where it is not already achieved. 

 Support for LA maintained schools is proportional to their effectiveness, 
so that resources are targeted where they are needed most, ensuring 
value for money. 

 Criteria for prioritisation are open and transparent, widely agreed upon 
and recognised as a proactive means to generate school improvement.    

 Ofsted judgements will show that 100% of Portsmouth schools are judged 
to be Good or better for their Overall Effectiveness.  

 School leaders are supported to be the drivers of their individual school's 
effectiveness, but also that aligned and collective school improvement 
across the Portsmouth Education Partnership impacts upon raising 
standards of achievement for all of our children and young people. 

  
7. Overall summary  
 

7.1 The rationale and criteria for the prioritisation of support for LA 
maintained schools are clear, considered and appropriate. 

 
7.2      School improvement support for LA maintained schools is proportional, 

targeted and bespoke. 
 
7.3      LA maintained schools receive support aligned to the LA Education 

Strategy and priorities agreed upon by the Portsmouth Education 
Partnership Strategic Board. 

 
7.4      School improvement provides both high support and high challenge in 

driving up standards.  
 
     
 

Page 12



 

1 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

  
Meeting: 
 
Subject: 

Education Advisory Board 
 
Response to Covid-19 
 

Date: 
 
Report from: 
 
Report by: 

14th October 2020 
 
Alison Jeffery,  Director of Children, Families and Education 
 
Mike Stoneman, Deputy Director, Education  

 

 
1. Purpose of report 
  

 1.1 This report sets out details of the work and ongoing work that has, and is 
continuing to be undertaken, by the council and partners to support 
education settings in response to the Covid-19 pandemic.  

 
2. Recommendations 

  
 2.1 It is recommended that members of the Education Advisory Board 

note the actions that have been taken over the past six months by 
the council and partners to respond to the pandemic and the 
ongoing work that is in place in order to continue to support 
education settings. 

 
3. The initial response to the pandemic  
 

 3.1 Following the decision by the government to close education settings 
from 23rd March 2020 the council worked closely with partners to agree 
and quickly put into place a response that would support education 
settings and protect and safeguard vulnerable learners.  The initial 
response is set out below in paragraphs 3.1 to 3.7: 

 
 3.2 A Covid-19 working group was established and chaired by the Deputy 

Director. This included a broad range of education leaders from schools, 
colleges, Multi Academy Trusts and early years settings as well as 
council officers and a representative from the Regional Schools 
Commissioner office. This group provided an important vehicle to consult 
on what was needed, agree priorities to focus on and to have oversight of 
the workstreams that followed and the actions that were being taken by 
each workstream. This was summarised in an overarching plan which 
was continually updated.  

 
 
 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



 

2 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 3.3 Six workstreams were quickly established, brief details of which are 
given below:  

 

 Infection control and health & safety - chaired by the Director of 
Public Health.  Weekly updates and guidance on infection control 
were provided to education settings and basic packages of PPE were 
delivered to all schools.  

 Digital learning and home learning - chaired by the seconded 
Ofsted inspector. The work supported the delivery of remote access to 
education and the preparations of a more comprehensive offer for the 
Autumn term exploiting the advantages of digital technology. A 
baseline survey was completed during the summer term to support 
this.   

 Emotional health and wellbeing - chaired by the PEP and Inclusion 
Manager.  A range of resources were developed to support schools 
both in terms of the emotional health of pupils and staff.  

 Safeguarding and vulnerable learners - chaired by the Head of 
Service for Inclusion. Work included the deployment of the LA Link 
Co-ordinators details of which are given in paragraph 3.6  

 Transition pre-school to key stage 2 - chaired by the Early Years 
Advisory Teacher. 

 Transition key stage 2 to key stage 5 - chaired by the Post-16 
Commissioning Manager. Work included the development of the 
Flying Start website and resources which supported the transition of 
Year 11 learners to post-16.  

 
 3.4 To ensure there were good communications between the council and 

headteachers, weekly virtual meetings were held with headteachers 
consisting of 3x primary heads (central, north and south), secondary 
heads and special school heats. Bi-weekly meetings were also held with 
CEOs of multi academy trusts and also with heads of LA maintained 
schools. In addition to meetings a daily email went out to all school 
leaders and partners providing key information and resources with links to 
dedicated pages on the PEP website 

 
 3.5 In addition to the workstreams and above communcations, a weekly 

'recovery and reset' reference group for early years settings was 
established and business sustainability service (Hempsalls) was 
commissioned to support the market. 

 
 3.6 An early decision was also made to deploy LA Link Co-ordinators to 

every school in the city to support the tracking and monitoring of 
vulnerable children and young people, particularly those that were not 
accessing school, to ensure they and their families were getting the right 
support. A Children's Hub was established as part of the HIVE to provide 
support and help to families in need.  

 
 3.7 LA Link Officers were deployed to LA maintained schools in order to 

provide support and sign off health & safety checks, risk assessments 

Page 14



 

3 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

and plans for re-opening schools to specific year groups as required by 
government.  

 
4. Preparing for the opening of schools to all year groups   
 

 4.1 During the summer, the council and partners worked hard to support 
schools to re-open to all year groups from September.  A summary of the 
response is set out below in paragraphs 4.2 to 4.9:  

 
 4.2 Whilst the Covid-19 Working Group was stepped down a number of the 

workstreams were retained including: digital learning; infection control; 
emotional health & wellbeing; and safeguarding & vulnerable learners. 
This have now been merged into the PEP structures which are shown on 
page 4 of the new education strategy 2020 - 2023.    

 
 4.3 The infection control and health & safety group stepped up their work 

to pull together a package of support that included guidance, resources, 
flowcharts and template letters that schools could send out to parents to 
cover a range of scenarios where there was a positive case, outbreak, 
local lockdown, etc.  

 
 4.4 A Welcome Back to School campaign was launched over the summer 

in order to reassure parents and carers about their children returning to 
schools and to demonstrate that schools were doing everything that was 
necessary to make schools safe.  The previous school attendance 
campaign 'Miss School Miss Out' is currently on hold and is likely to be 
relaunched after the October half term.  

 
 4.5 Alongside the Welcome Back to School campaign, a Welcome Back 

toolkit and resources for schools was produced and distributed.  
Similar versions were done for front line practitioners working with 
families and also a version for partner organisations.  

 
 4.6 The arrangements for tracking and monitoring vulnerable children 

and young people were continued but due to the fact services were 
being stood up again and those redeployed as LA Link Co-ordinators 
were having to return to their roles, a decision was made to recruit 3 full 
time Co-ordinators.  All 3 posts will be filled by November 2020.  

 
 4.7 To further support vulnerable children and in particular those that might 

struggle to return to school, a template for Welcome Back Plans were 
distributed which many schools have used during the first few weeks of 
the Autumn term.   

 
 4.8 Also distributed ahead of the first week of term was a Welcome Back to 

School wellbeing support package for schools based on a similar 
package that was developed in Medway.  

 

Page 15



 

4 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 4.9 The arrangements that were in place during the summer term to support 
communications continued into the Autumn term but on a less frequent 
basis.  Briefings for headteachers were held bi-weekly rather than every 
week and the daily communications were reduced to a weekly comms on 
a Friday. Bi-weekly meetings with MAT continued and briefings for LA 
maintained schools returned to half termly.  

 
 

Page 16



 

1 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

Meeting: 
 
Subject: 

Education Advisory Board 
 
Education Strategy 2020 - 2023 
 

Date: 
 
Report from: 
 
Report by: 
 

14th October 2020 
 
Alison Jeffery,  Director of Children, Families and Education 
 
Mike Stoneman, Deputy Director, Education 

 

 
1. Purpose of report 
  

 1.1 The purpose of this report is to share with Board Members details of the 
final draft of the new three year Portsmouth Education Strategy 2020 - 
2023 as set out in Appendix 1.  

 
2. Recommendations 

  
 2.1 It is recommended that members of the Education Advisory Board 

endorse the final draft of the Portsmouth Education Strategy 2020 - 
2023. 

 
3. Background  
 

 3.1 The 3 year education strategy replaces the previous strategy which ran 
from 2017 to 2020.  The intention was to hold an extensive consultation 
during the summer term to inform a new three year strategy, but as a 
result of the pandemic this was cancelled.  

 
 3.2 The Covid-19 pandemic has created significant challenges for all schools. 

Contributing to the management of the pandemic and managing its 
impact on children will absorb much of the energy of schools over the 
coming months, possibly years. This is not a reason to hold back from the 
development of a clear collective strategy for education in the city, 
however. More than ever, the city needs strong education leadership with 
clear individual school and city wide priorities, around which all education 
leaders focus their efforts.  

 
 3.3 This three year strategy has therefore been developed building on the 

work of the previous strategy but also taking into account the extensive 
efforts that have been made by all partners to address the pandemic and 
its impact on education and education settings.  

 
 3.4 While the strategy sets the direction for the next three years, it outlines 

specific actions to be taken over the next 12 months so that there is 
complete clarity on our focus during this period. 

Page 17

Agenda Item 6



 

2 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 
 3.5 The delivery of the strategy will be done under the auspices of the 

Portsmouth Education Partnership (PEP) recognising the part that all 
partners of the PEP will play in delivering the nine priorities that are set 
out in the strategy, and will be overseen by the PEP Strategic Board. 

 
 3.6 It has been agreed that the Portsmouth Multi Academy Trusts (MATs) 

Strategic Forum will discontinue and will merge with the PEP Strategic 
Board to create a single entity.  This recognises that two thirds of schools 
in the city now belong to a MAT with further transfers planned this year, 
and builds on the strong collaborative working with MATs over the 
summer to address the challenges posed by the pandemic. MATs have 
worked with the council and partners to share their processes, practices 
and expertise, contributed to work in all areas and have also led and 
chaired Covid-19 workstreams.  All are agreed that now is the time to 
formalise and extend this approach. 

  
 3.7 The PEP structures that were established three years ago will remain in 

place but will now be augmented by a number of other groups which have 
been established to address the challenges created by the pandemic. 
These structures are set out on page 4 of the strategy (Appendix 1). 

 
4. Priorities   
 

4.1 9 priorities have been identified, a summary of which is set out below. 
This includes details of the governance arrangements which will be 
responsible for their delivery.  For each priority there are set of key 
actions that will be taken forward in the first year of the strategy 2020/21. 
The majority of these are either underway or in planning.  

 
No Priority  

 
Governance  

1. Strong leadership and ambition at all levels 
within individual schools to improve 
effectiveness and outcomes for children and 
young people  

School Leadership and 
Effectiveness Board  

2. Implement a digital learning strategy for the 
city that supports learning both at school and 
at home 

Digital Learning / Digital 
Pioneers Group   

3. Improve pupil outcomes in literacy (reading, 
writing and oral) with a focus on early 
language development 

Early Language and Literacy 
Development Group  

4. Recruit, retain and grow the best teachers 
and leaders 

ITT, Teacher Recruitment 
and Retention Group  

5. Ensure all schools have access to clear and 
up to date infection control and health & 
safety information and are able to respond 
appropriately to local Covid-19 outbreaks 

Infection Control and Health 
& Safety Group  

6. Ensure all education settings have robust 
safeguarding policies, processes and culture 
in place 

Portsmouth Safeguarding 
Children's Partnership 

Page 18



 

3 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

7. Promote emotional health, wellbeing and 
resilience in education  

Children's Emotional Health 
& Wellbeing Group 

8. Ensure all pupils regularly attend school Behaviour and Attendance 
Group (BAG) 

9. Invest in school buildings to create additional 
school places, focusing on secondary, even 
more inclusive mainstream schools and a 
continuum of specialist provision for children 
with additional needs 

School Sufficiency Board  
 

 
5. Next steps  
 

5.1 The final draft of the strategy has been sent out to all members of the 
PEP with a deadline of Friday 16th October for any final comments and 
feedback.  There may therefore be some late changes. The strategy will 
be published the following week.  

 
5.2 Governance arrangements are in place for all the priorities with the 

exception of priority 3 which will be established before half term.  
 

   
Appendix 1: Portsmouth Education Strategy 2020 - 2023  
 
     
 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

Appendix 1 
          

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
Portsmouth Education Strategy 

2020 - 2023 
 

Year 1: 2020 - 2021 
Final Draft  

 
 

Please send any feedback and comments to Mike Stoneman by  
Friday 16th October at mike.stoneman@portsmouthcc.gov.uk 

  

Page 21



2 
 

1. Introduction  
 

This document sets out a proposed three year education strategy for Portsmouth 2020-
23.  
 
The Covid-19 pandemic has created significant challenges for all schools. Contributing 
to the management of the pandemic and managing its impact on children will absorb 
much of the energy of schools over the coming months, possibly years. This is not a 
reason to hold back from the development of a clear collective strategy for education in 
the city, however. More than ever, the city needs strong education leadership with clear 
individual school and city wide priorities, around which all education leaders focus their 
efforts. We must do all we can to ensure that the education of children in Portsmouth is 
not a casualty of the difficult demands of this time.  
 
While the strategy sets the direction for the next three years, it outlines specific actions 
to be taken over the next 12 months so that there is complete clarity on our focus during 
this period.  
 
The delivery of the strategy will be done under the auspices of the Portsmouth 
Education Partnership (PEP) recognising the part that all partners of the PEP will play in 
delivering the nine priorities that are set out in the strategy, and will be overseen by the 
PEP Strategic Board.   
 
It has been agreed that the Portsmouth Multi Academy Trusts (MATs) Strategic Forum 
will discontinue and will merge with the PEP Strategic Board to create a single entity.  
This recognises that two thirds of schools in the city now belong to a MAT with further 
transfers planned this year, and builds on the strong collaborative working with MATs 
over the summer to address the challenges posed by the pandemic. MATs have worked 
with the council and partners to share their processes, practices and expertise, 
contributed to work in all areas and have also led and chaired Covid-19 workstreams.  
All are agreed that now is the time to formalise and extend this approach.  
  
The PEP structures that were established three years ago will remain in place but will 
now be augmented by a number of other groups which have been established to 
address the challenges created by the pandemic. These structures are set out on page 
4. 

 
2. The vision   
 

Our vision is that through working together we can ensure that:  
 
All children and young people make good progress through education which sets high 
expectations for them, is infused with restorative high support and high challenge and 
which is supported through leading edge use of digital technology, empowering them to 
drive their own learning anywhere.  

 
 
 
 

 

Page 22



3 
 

3. Shared values and accountability 
 

The shared values and accountability that were agreed three years ago will remain in 
place.  All members of the Portsmouth Education Partnership are committed to: 
 

 Shared accountability for improving standards and the educational outcomes and life 
chances of all children and young people  

 Promoting a culture of openness, trust and collaboration  

 Putting the interests of children and young people first at all times 

 Ensuring no child should fail to reach their educational potential because of 
disadvantage or vulnerability 

 Ensuring no schools, colleges or settings are left isolated 

 Ensuring all our joint actions add value, are evidence based and as far as possible 
are preventative rather than a response to a crisis.  

 
4. Priorities 
 

The 9 priorities that form part of the Portsmouth Education Strategy 2020-23 are set out 
below with details of the Boards / Groups that will be responsible for their delivery.  This 
strategy document provides a high level summary of the plans that support each priority 
with cross references and links to other documents and action plans.  

 

No Priority  
 

Governance  

1. Strong leadership and ambition at all levels within 
individual schools to improve effectiveness and 
outcomes for children and young people  

School Leadership and 
Effectiveness Board  

2. Implement a digital learning strategy for the city that 
supports learning both at school and at home 

Digital Learning / Digital 
Pioneers Group   

3. Improve pupil outcomes in literacy (reading, writing and 
oral) with a focus on early language development 

Early Language and 
Literacy Development 
Group  

4. Recruit, retain and grow the best teachers and leaders ITT, Teacher Recruitment 
and Retention Group  

5. Ensure all schools have access to clear and up to date 
infection control and health & safety information and are 
able to respond appropriately to local Covid-19 
outbreaks 

Infection Control and 
Health & Safety Group  

6. Ensure all education settings have robust safeguarding 
policies, processes and culture in place 

Portsmouth Safeguarding 
Children's Partnership 

7. Promote emotional health, wellbeing and resilience in 
education  

Children's Emotional 
Health & Wellbeing Group 

8. Ensure all pupils regularly attend school Behaviour and Attendance 
Group (BAG) 

9. Invest in school buildings to create additional school 
places, focusing on secondary, even more inclusive 
mainstream schools and a continuum of specialist 
provision for children with additional needs 

School Sufficiency Board  
 

Page 23



4 
 

P
age 24



5 
 

5. Inclusion  
 

A central theme of the previous PEP strategy was inclusion and this will continue to be 
the case for the 2020-21 strategy - creating an educational environment that is 
welcoming to all children and young people and not giving up on any child whatever 
their circumstances.   
 
The strategy has strong links with the SEND and SEMH Strategies and these are set out 
in the relevant priorities, focusing on improving inclusion for all children but with a 
particular focus on the provision of education for children with SEND and improving 
outcomes for vulnerable learners including those open to social care and early help and 
those identified by schools as requiring additional support.   
 
Underpinning the objective of inclusion has been the work around the Portsmouth 
Inclusion Education Quality Mark (PIEQM) through self and peer assessment in order 
to identify strengths and areas for development in relation to inclusive practice.  Linked 
to this will the continued offer of support through the Inclusion Outreach Service which 
started in October last year and will be continuing to offer support for schools if they 
have any concerns about meeting children's additional needs. The outreach support is 
available to all mainstream schools, delivered by a range of professionals from a 
partnership of services including MABS, Solent Academies Trust, Children's Therapy 
Service, and experienced Outreach SENCOs from mainstream schools in the city.  
 
The strategy will also have running through it a commitment to engage with schools and 
partners to develop and share anti-racism training and resources in response to Black 
Lives Matter. A dedicated page for these resources has been developed on the PEP 
website and can be found here. 

 
6. Key performance indicators 
 

A range of key performance indicators will be used to judge the impact of the strategy 
and each of the nine priorities. They include: 
  

 Ofsted inspections of early years settings, schools and post-16 providers 

 Attainment and progress data at all key stages 

 School attendance, exclusions, reduced timetables and elective home education 

 Post-16 participation and destinations  

 Teacher vacancies  

 ITT trainees and % finding permanent placements in Portsmouth's schools 
 

 
 

 

  

Page 25

https://www.portsmoutheducationpartnership.co.uk/black-lives-matter-responses-resources-and-re-imagining-your-curriculum/?utm_medium=Email&utm_source=GovDelivery


6 
 

Priority 1: strong leadership and ambition at all levels 
within individual schools to improve effectiveness and 
outcomes for children and young people 
 

 

Background 
 
The leadership of schools, both at the most senior level but also at all levels, is critical to 
effectiveness. 
 
Over the last five years there has been a significant improvement in the Ofsted inspection 
grades for schools and academies in the city, improving at a faster rate than nationally. 92% 
of inspected schools in Portsmouth are currently judged by Ofsted to be Good or better.  
 
At the same time while school leaders and teachers in the city work hard and many go the 
extra mile for children, as Ofsted inspections testify, the city has seen its position in 
rankings for local authority areas decline across a number of key indicators, to the point 
where many are significantly out of line with those of comparable areas. This undoubtedly 
affects the life chances of children in the city. 
 
As a result of the coronavirus pandemic and the cancellation of all end of year assessments 
and exams there is no published data available in 2020 to determine if the position has 
improved or worsened.  However, whilst the education strategy for 2020-23 and in particular 
the actions set out for 2020-21, have a somewhat different focus in response to Covid-19, 
the focus on standards, and in particular attainment and progress measures, should 
continue given recent trends and the inevitable fact that disadvantaged children will have 
lost ground to those who are not disadvantaged and this will be most felt in areas like 
Portsmouth where there are higher levels of deprivation.   
 
Our strategy over the last 3 years to try and improve standards and accelerate progress has 
been based on a combination of: 
 

 Support for leadership development at all levels which to date has focused on: 
aspiring leadership programmes for groups of teachers preparing for their first 
leadership role; middle and senior leaders ready for whole school responsibility; 
development of potential senior leaders who have the talent and commitment to become 
headteachers within 2-3 years; and programmes for aspiring or existing Executive 
Headteachers and CEOs of Multi Academy Trusts.  There are a range of senior 
leadership programmes available and a summary of those can be found here: 
https://www.teachportsmouth.co.uk/training#cpd  

 

 A collaborative school improvement approach through the Portsmouth Education 
Partnership, led by the PEP School Improvement Board, in order to generate more 
locally co-ordinated support for schools and encourage the sharing of resources and 
best practice.  The Partnership has amongst other things overseen the delivery of two 
major Strategic School Improvement Fund (SSIF) programmes focussed on improving 
the outcomes for disadvantaged children and pupils on SEN Support in mainstream 
schools, further expansion of the Challenge Partners (CP) Hub, effective city wide 
EYFS, KS1 and KS2 assessment and moderation, development of a PEP Performance 
Dashboard to help assess strengths and areas of development, development of subject 

Page 26

https://www.teachportsmouth.co.uk/training#cpd


7 
 

sector networks, publication of a school support directory giving details of system 
leaders and significant support from the Solent Maths Hub and English Hub particularly 
in primary schools.   
 

 Academisation whereby the majority of schools in the city become part of strong and 
effective Multi Academy Trusts (MATs) which can act as strong engines for school 
improvement, bringing in support and challenge from outside the city as well as from 
within. Two thirds of schools are now part of a MAT. 

 
Overall, the results over the last three years make it clear that this strategy has not yet 
succeeded despite the best efforts of our strategic leaders.  The improvements made in 
terms of Ofsted judgements have been welcomed and it is hoped that this will translate into 
improved outcomes but clearly more needs to be done.  The lack government funding 
available for school improvement support has not helped, with the exception of short term 
SSIF and NLE support for schools requiring improvement.   
 
To drive the effectiveness at individual school level which is critical to the success of this 
strategy we propose that all schools should be asked to review the attainment and progress 
of children against the benchmark of attainment and progress by schools elsewhere in the 
country which have similar pupil profiles. This can never be an exact science but tried and 
tested comparison tools have existed for some time now, for example through the Fisher 
Family Trust or the Education Endowment Foundation. Many MATs already apply this 
approach in their leadership and management of their schools. All schools and academies 
in Portsmouth now need to use these tools to set a target to achieve, as a minimum, the 
average level of attainment and progress achieved by similar schools elsewhere and to 
review their plans so that they are clear what detailed actions will be taken, individually and 
collectively through the PEP, to achieve those targets.  
 
A key focus of the School Leadership and Effectiveness Board will be to organise peer 
review of schools' plans, focussing on the schools which are currently not achieving 
average attainment for their comparison group. All MATs and maintained schools will be 
asked to commit to contributing to this peer review process. Following peer review the 
Board will draw up a leadership support programme designed to support schools to achieve 
the targets, and also advise on where other collective activity is required.  This will form part 
of a consistent expectation around benchmarking and target setting and the importance of 
external school review, to validate and inform school self-evaluation, in line with principles 
of high support & high challenge. 
 
Digital learning has a significant potential role to play in helping schools to achieve their 
targets and is a separate collective priority in this strategy (Priority 2).   
 
The system leadership reforms announced by the Government earlier this year offer 
another opportunity in terms of what a Teaching School Hub can do for the city and future 
investment by the Government in National Leaders of Education (NLEs) and National 
Leaders of Governance (NLGs). 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 27



8 
 

Key actions for 2020/21  
 
1. Revise the terms of reference and membership of the PEP School Leadership and 

Effectiveness Board (previously known as the School Improvement Board). 
 

2. Organise a peer review process for reviewing individual school plans to achieve 
target levels of attainment and progress.  

 
3. Draw up a coordinated leadership support programme to help individual school 

leaders at all levels to achieve their targets, building on the leadership programmes that 
are currently available 

 
4. Review and re-purpose the subject networks in order to provide more support for 

middle leaders to develop subject knowledge, high quality curriculum planning and a 
clear understanding of the importance of sequencing learning in order to improve the 
quality of education. 

 
5. Advise on what collective action would be beneficial to help schools achieve 

targets, for example continuing to run the Excellence for Everyone Challenge Partners' 
programme to support the progress of disadvantaged pupils. 

 
6. Develop a programme of support for early years settings and schools in terms of 

communication and literacy (refer to priority 3).  
 
7. Continue to focus on improving outcomes for pupils in mainstream schools with 

SEND and support improvements in the middle leadership of SENCos. 
 
8. Ensure the effective delivery of moderation at KS1 and KS2 including monitoring the 

Year 1 Phonics Screening Check and the Year 4 Multiplication Tables Check 
(MTC). 

  

Page 28



9 
 

Priority 2: implement a digital learning strategy for 
the city that supports learning both at school and 
at home 
  
 
Background  
  
Home Learning UK's report Protecting Learning reflects on the experiences of educators, 
parents and pupils during Covid-19. It credits leaders' determination and passion to protect 
learning despite not all schools having the digital infrastructure, devices, experience and 
confidence to shift at speed to remote learning supported by technology, and considers 
where different schools are on the continuum of adoption.  
  
Covid-19 has brought the potential of digital technology to effectively deliver remote 
learning to fore, but exploiting its use is not new and discussions were underway early this 
year before the pandemic about how a city wide approach could be developed which 
supported learning both in school and at home and which could ultimately drive improved 
outcomes in terms of attainment and progress.  
  
The DfE published Realising the potential of technology in education in April 2019, setting 
out the strategy to 'support the education sector in England to develop and embed 
technology in a way that cuts workload, fosters efficiencies, supports inclusion and 
ultimately drives improvements in educational outcomes'.   In December 2019 the 
Education Endowment Foundation (EEF) published Using digital technology to improve 
learning. This guidance report put forward that the question is no longer whether technology 
should have a place in the classroom, but how technology can most effectively be 
integrated in ways which achieve improved outcomes for young people'. Its key message 
was that to improve learning, technology must be used in a way that informed by effective 
pedagogy.  
  
In response to the pandemic and the closure of schools and as part of the arrangements 
that were put in place through the Portsmouth Education Partnership, a curriculum, digital 
and home learning work stream was established. An early piece of work was to establish 
some principles for protecting learning for all pupils and what schools would do to support 
this and advice for parents to support their child's learning whilst not at school HERE    
  
Towards the end of June 2020 a comprehensive baseline survey was undertaken to 
establish what schools were offering in the way of home learning, what was going well and 
where the problems or barriers might be and to understand schools' experience of using 
digital technology to support home learning. The summary report can be found here.  A key 
finding from the survey was variability and the different stages schools were at with home 
learning and the application of digital technology to support both home learning and 
learning in school.  Other key findings included: access to devices and internet was variable 
affecting disadvantage pupils the most; the CPD offer to support digital learning was still in 
its infancy; assessment and feedback was variable; parental involvement and engagement 
increased significantly; a wide range of software or websites were being used to support 
home learning but the monitoring and quality assurance of home learning was mixed; 
almost all schools had run sessions on online safety.  
  

Page 29

https://homelearninguk.weebly.com/uploads/1/0/1/8/10180694/protecting_learning__low_res_.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/realising-the-potential-of-technology-in-education
https://educationendowmentfoundation.org.uk/public/files/Publications/digitalTech/EEF_Digital_Technology_Guidance_Report.pdf
https://educationendowmentfoundation.org.uk/public/files/Publications/digitalTech/EEF_Digital_Technology_Guidance_Report.pdf
https://www.portsmoutheducationpartnership.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/10/Home-learning-principles-summer-2020-v2.docx
https://www.portsmoutheducationpartnership.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/10/Establishing-a-baseline-summary-report.docx


10 
 

There appeared to be two natural groups of schools emerging in the short to medium term: 
those who are well on their way with digital learning and could be used as a digital pioneer 
or strategy group to drive the agenda forward; and those interested but still at an early point 
and needing support and who could benefit from the Ed Tech Programme.  
  
Key actions for 2020/21: 
  
1. Establish a strategy group of school leaders / pioneers who can agree and drive 

forward a digital learning strategy for the city under the ‘Imagine Portsmouth’ banner and 
begin to showcase digital delivery. This will be a continuation of the curriculum, digital 
and home learning work stream but with an expanded membership to include more 
pioneer schools. 

 

2. Develop, in consultation with schools, MATs, and other partners a three year 
digital learning strategy for Portsmouth with clear expectations about the way in 
which secondary, primary, infant, junior and special schools will increase their use of 
technology to enhance learning over the three years.  

 

3. Support schools to effectively exploit the potential of digital learning both in 
school and at home.  This will include a high quality CPD offer (incorporating 
safeguarding and a focus on assessment and feedback) technical support and a series 
of events and workshops to promote digital learning and showcase local good practice 
and membership of the Ed Tech Programme. 

 

4. Ensure all schools have in place by the end of September 2020 contingency 
arrangements for remote education which meet the expectations set out in the DFE 
guidance in the event of a local outbreak in a school or a local lockdown in a community.  

 

5. Significantly reduce the number of children with no access to either appropriate 
devices or to the internet. In the short to medium term this will include the distribution 
of devices through a number of avenues including nationally funded government 
schemes and local schemes through Shaping Portsmouth, LA Emergency Grant and the 
HIVE.   

 
6. Upskill parents and pupils in order to support home learning and a blended offer of 

digital and non-digital and support schools to build and develop better relationships with 
parents about their child's learning. 

 
7. Ensure schools have the information they need to make informed decisions about the 

most suitable apps to support home learning and the leasing and purchase 
options to provide additional devices to pupils, including 1:1 subscription models. 

 

8. Develop and establish support networks across the city which encourage and support 
the implementation of digital learning e.g. IT managers in schools.  

 

9. Promote to schools the digital apprenticeship programme that is available through 
Portsmouth College.  

 

Page 30



11 
 

Priority 3: improving pupil outcomes in literacy (reading, 
writing and oral) with a focus on early language development 
  
Background  
 
Improving early communication, language and literacy development is a key priority for the 
city.  We know that by the age for four, a child from a disadvantaged background has heard 
30 million fewer words compared to their more advantaged peers. We know that a child with 
a poor vocabulary when they are five is more than twice as likely to be unemployed in their 
thirties and one and a half times more likely to have mental health problems compared to a 
child with a good vocabulary.   
 
Some of the most disadvantaged children in Portsmouth start school months behind their 
peers and the gap can grow through their school years.  As a result of Covid-19 the 
likelihood is that disadvantaged children in Portsmouth will have lost more ground in their 
language development, exacerbating the situation. 
 
Our performance through EYFS and KS1 and KS2 underlines the issue, the latest figures 
for which are from 2019 due to the cancellation of all assessments and exams in 2020 as a 
result of Covid-19.  
 
Literacy related outcomes for 2019 EYFS - KS2 
 
Key performance indicator % achieving 

expected standard 
Gap to national (% 

points) 
LA ranking 

EYFS GLD 70% 2%  

EY goals: listening & attention 87% +1%  

EY goals: understanding 86% 0%  

EY goals: speaking 85% 0%  

Phonics Year 1 79% 3% 141 

KS1 Reading 74% 1% 99 

KS1 Writing 66% 3% 130 

KS2 Reading 66% 7% 148 

KS2 Writing 75% 3% 131 

 
In Early Years there has been a collaborative effort across the city to develop a cohesive 
communication and language strategy which is helpfully summarised on the co-produced 
early language on a page: https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/sch-
portsmouth-early-language-plan-on-a-page.pdf 
 
Other work has included the 'Read with Me' project - a collaborative initiative bringing 
together the School Library Service, public libraries, EY settings, Yr R practitioners and 
parents. The development of communication and language skills underpins this project, but 
we also seek to foster a love of reading and focus on literacy skills in this project. The roll 
out of 'Read with Me' was hampered by Covid-19, but the intention is to continue this work 
and be able to monitor and track outcomes of children participating in the 2021 model.The 
recent launch of '50 things to do before you're 5 in Portsmouth' initiative will help to secure 
further understanding of the vital importance of all partners working together to promote 
early language development, making it everyone's business.  Again, the Covid pandemic 
has prevented us from launching '50 things' to the public, but as more local attractions re-
open, we are getting closer. 

Page 31

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/sch-portsmouth-early-language-plan-on-a-page.pdf
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/sch-portsmouth-early-language-plan-on-a-page.pdf


12 
 

 
The city has actively supported and promoted the national Hungry Little Minds campaign 
which was launched in 2018 as part of the government's ambition to halve in ten years the 
proportion of children who finish reception year without the communication, language and 
literacy skills they need to thrive. The campaign seeks to encourage parents and carers to 
engage in activities that support their child’s early learning and help prepare them  for 
school and beyond. 
 
Schools are strongly encouraged to apply to be involved in the national reception year 
early language programme for 2020/21 which has been launched to help close the Covid 
language gap as an additional element in its catch up support programme. The Department 
for Education will be working with the Education Endowment Foundation (EEF) and other 
partners to scale-up delivery of the Nuffield Early Language Intervention (NELI); a high-
quality, evidence-based, 20-week intervention designed to improve the language skills of 
reception age pupils.   The programme will provide schools with training and resources, 
helping them deliver one-to-one and small-group support for five-year-olds whose spoken 
language skills may have suffered as a result of the pandemic.  As of September 2020, we 
have 12 schools who have registered to take part in this programme. 
 
Within the primary sector schools have been involved in a Reading Research Project in 
partnership with the Portsmouth Teaching School Alliance, Thornden Research School and 
the Education Endowment Foundation.  School Improvement funding was released to train 
and deploy SLEs to work with schools on their own bespoke projects based on proven 
research and principles from the Challenge the Gap and SEN projects already successfully 
undertaken through SSIF.  The nationally recognised Challenge Partners Excellence for 
Everyone programme has enabled schools to access a whole school approach designed to 
deliver transformational support for disadvantaged pupils and provide quality professional 
development for school staff.  Postponed due to the Covid-19 partial school closures both 
of these initiatives strongly need to continue to impact upon the life chances of our pupils in 
Key Stages 1 and 2.  The 100% assessment pass rate of Key Stage 1 and 2 moderators for 
Writing highlights that our practitioners understand the standards that pupils need to 
achieve, the focus must be on the delivery of a quality curriculum by highly effective 
education staff. 
 
At secondary we know that literacy is key to learning across all subjects and a strong 
predictor of outcomes in later life.  Disciplinary literacy is an approach to improving literacy 
across the curriculum which should be encouraged. It recognises that literacy skills are both 
general and subject specific, emphasising the value of supporting teachers in every subject 
to teach students how to read, write and communicate effectively in their subjects. This 
guidance challenges the notion that literacy in secondary school is solely the preserve of 
English teachers, or literacy coordinators. The emphasis on disciplinary literacy makes clear 
that every teacher communicates their subject through academic language, and that 
reading, writing, speaking and listening are at the heart of knowing and doing every subject 
in secondary school. 
 
Key priorities for 2020/21:  
 
1. Improve EYFSP outcomes but with a particular focus on communication and 

language. This will include:   

Page 32



13 
 

 Engagement by schools with the national reception year early language programme 

for 2020/21. 

 Launch of '50 things to do before you're 5' initiative to engage parents in supporting 
communication and language for their children. 

 Regularly refresh and publicise Hungry Little Minds on social media platforms. 

 Provide training for early years settings and the reception year with communication 
and language focus. 

 Support the early years workforce and partnerships with health e.g. evaluation and 
updating of key tools (EL monitoring tool, Language Top Tips for Talking) based on 
current research and a training programme (e.g. masterclass in language theories). 

 Develop programme of shared support for early years settings and linked to  reception 
year practitioners based on communication and language provision leading into 
improving literacy provision. 

 Use of the new Speech and Language resource, which is funded for 2 years and 
shared between Health and Early Years. The impact of the resource will not be seen 
in EYFSP outcomes until 2022, as the focus is on support and training for EY settings 
this year. 

 
2. Continue to implement Portsmouth's Early Language Plan which includes:  

 Ensuring the early years workforce understand early language development and 
support children to achieve their very best.  

 Ensuring that families understand the importance of early language development 
and the vital role they play and take an active interest in supporting children to 
develop a wide and rich vocabulary.  

 Develop a data-led approach to the delivery and analysis of the effectiveness of 
early language programmes across the city.  

 Develop appropriate tools, training and practice sharing that support schools 
and early years providers to deliver robust and effective approaches to all children's 
early language development.   

 Work with health service providers to ensure they use a range of resources and 
tools, share key messages about language development with families at every 
contact and develop mechanisms to share best practice across the health workforce, 
supporting families at all levels of the Healthy Child Programme.  

 Work with early years providers and schools to ensure key staff are trained in a 
way which provides them with a high level of understanding around the acquisition of 
early language; ensure that the provision has a culture in which early language and 
communication development is a primary focus and integrated into all activity; and 
promote engaging and stimulating language rich environments.  

 
3. In our primary schools we will focus on supporting schools to deliver the following: 

 Develop pupils’ speaking and listening skills and wider understanding of language 
development. 

 Use a wide range of explicit and implicit approaches including planning the 
teaching of vocabulary, modelling and extending children’s language and 
thinking during interactions and activities such as shared reading. 

 Use a balanced and engaging approach to developing reading, integrating both 
decoding and comprehension skills. Both decoding (the ability to translate written 
words into the sounds of spoken language) and comprehension (the ability to 

Page 33



14 
 

understand the meaning of the language being read) skills are necessary for 
confident and competent reading, but neither is sufficient on its own. 

 Effectively oversee that schools and early years settings implement a systematic 
phonics programme which explicitly teaches pupils a comprehensive set of letter-
sound relationships for reading and sound letter relationships for spelling. 

 Teach pupils to use strategies for developing and monitoring their reading 
comprehension. These include: prediction; questioning; clarifying; summarising; 
and activating and applying prior knowledge. 

 Teach pupils to use strategies for planning and monitoring their writing.  Producing 
quality writing is a complex process but a number of different strategies are likely to 
help, depending on the current skills of the writer. These include pre-writing activities, 
drafting, editing and revising and sharing.  

 Promote fluent written transcription skills (handwriting, spelling or typing) through 
encouraging extensive and purposeful practice and explicit teaching.  Children must 
develop fluency in these skills to the point that they have become automated. 

 Collect high quality, up-to-date information about pupils’ current capabilities, 
and adapt teaching accordingly to focus on exactly what pupils need to progress. 
This approach is more efficient because effort is spent on the best next step and not 
wasted by rehearsing skills or content that a child already knows well. 

 
4. In our secondary schools we will focus on supporting schools to deliver the following:  

 Disciplinary literacy across the curriculum.  

 Provide targeted vocabulary instruction in every subject. 

 Develop students’ ability to read complex academic texts. 

 Break down complex writing tasks. 

 Combine writing instruction with reading in every subject and provide opportunities 
for structured talk. 

 Provide high quality literacy interventions for struggling students. This will include the 
establishment of the Pompey Literacy Pirates programme which will deliver an 
intensive year long after school learning programme for children aged 9 to 13 who 
are both falling behind in their progress and are disadvantaged, targeting 60 pupils in 
the Autumn term rising to 120 in the following Spring term. 

  

Page 34



15 
 

Priority 4: recruit, retain and grow the 
best teachers and leaders  
  

 
Background  
 
The shortage of teachers, particularly in certain subject areas, has been a significant cause 
for concern in the city for some years, which has intensified as a result of rising pupil 
numbers and fewer graduates entering the profession. The PEP made this one of its early 
priorities and established the ITT and Teacher & Retention Group to lead on this work and 
drive forward Teach Portsmouth.  
 
The brand has benefitted from tactical marketing campaigns to increase awareness and 
communicate changes to the recruitment process during COVID-19. One example of this 
can be seen in the your time to teach campaign which supported initial teacher training 
providers in the city at a time when the virus had caused uncertainty for recruiting trainee 
teachers. So far, the impact of COVID-19 on teacher recruitment and retention appears to 
have been a positive one with schools reporting higher numbers of applicants for teaching 
and senior leadership posts and initial teaching training providers reporting the same. But 
the same was true back in 2008 following the financial crisis which led to a surge of new 
entrants to the profession - within a few years this surge melted away as economic 
conditions improved.  
 
It is clear therefore that the PEP must maintain the momentum and the work that has 
formed part of Teach Portsmouth branded activities, events and your time to teach 
campaign will need to continue and develop in 2020/21 in order to attract and retain the 
best teachers and leaders for the city.  
 
While COVID-19 has impacted our ability to deliver face to face events like the Teach 
Portsmouth Recruitment Fair, the PEP continues to adapt what is done in light of 
declining attendance in recent years. While there is a place for recruitment fairs, the 
uncertainties around COVID-19 and events has made the Partnership consider digital 
alternatives including webinars.  
 
Preparations for the Teach Portsmouth Awards continue with the focus on generating 
sponsorship, compiling long service award entries and securing trophies. As a result of 
COVID-19 the date has been moved to March 2021. 
 
Whilst recruiting new teachers will continue to be a priority, there also needs to be a 
continuing emphasis on the retention of teachers.  Before the pandemic one third of 
teachers in Portsmouth did not stay beyond the fifth year and many left the profession 
altogether. There is a recognition by the government that unmanageable workloads are a 
key factor in teachers leaving the profession.  The impact of Covid-19 and the return to 
school for all year groups will inevitably test teachers as they grapple with the new 
arrangements. And further disruption caused by potential infection outbreaks and the move 
to blended learning could test teachers further. Whilst recruitment might be on the up we 
cannot afford to take our eye off the issue of retention, teacher's wellbeing and continuous 
professional development.  
 

Page 35



16 
 

Initial Teaching Training (ITT) is being reviewed. Currently ITT is undertaken either via a 
higher education institute led route or school-led route. School-led routes include salaried 
options (School Direct or Teach First) or fee based options (School Direct or School 
Centred ITT). The proportion of teachers entering the profession via the school-led route 
continues to rise. The PEP wants to build on the supply of ITT routes and to continue to 
reach out to other audiences including the armed forces and uniformed services. The city is 
fortunate to have a range of providers who have been judged to be outstanding by Ofsted.   
 
We also need to recognise the intense pressure senior leaders are under as a result of 
Covid-19 and the additional responsibilities and workload that has been placed on our 
senior leaders.  Their emotional health and wellbeing will be of paramount importance and 
the early work done last year to consider how we can better support senior leaders in 
Portsmouth will continue in 2020/21.  
 
Key actions 2020/21 
 
1. Launch monthly e-newsletter for Teach Portsmouth and increase sign up.  

 
2. Continue to run tactical marketing campaigns aimed at boosting teacher recruitment 

and retention.  
 

3. Increase engagement and reach across all digital platforms through content marketing 
strategy. 

 
4. Deliver the annual teacher recruitment fair digitally. 
 
5. Deliver the annual Teach Portsmouth Awards in March 2021.  
 
6. Develop virtual events including webinars, Q&As and other interactive solutions 

that complement traditional face to face events once social distancing is lowered. 
 
7. Undertake a teacher recruitment survey across all schools in order to inform future 

work.  
  

Page 36



17 
 

Priority 5: ensure all schools have access to clear and up to date 
infection control and health and safety information and are able to 
respond appropriately to local Covid-19 outbreaks 
 
Background 
 
In these unprecedented times the successful implementation of the Portsmouth Education 
Strategy in 2020/21 will very much depend on how local areas and schools manage the risk 
of infection to ensure outbreaks are minimised in order to avoid significant disruption to 
children and young people's education in the city.  
 
The importance of infection control and the need for clear and up to date infection control 
and health and safety information to schools and partners was recognised soon after the 
national lockdown in March 2020 and an infection and health & safety group was swiftly 
established, chaired by the Director of Public Health, reporting into the Covid-19 Working 
Group.   
 
The group was established to ensure:  
 

 all stakeholders (headteachers, teachers, pupils, local authority officers) have clear and 
consistent information on how to minimise the risk of infection in schools and what to do 
in the event of a possible or confirmed case in a school 

 information is conveyed in such a way that it builds trust and confidence in the way that 
schools are handling potential outbreaks, making it more likely that advice on infection 
control, including self-isolation where necessary, is closely followed. 
 

During the summer term the group responded to the frequently changing DfE guidance and 
health information by producing checklist and FAQs with practical advice and guidance to 
help schools to open to a larger group of children from June 2020 and to plan for the full re-
opening of schools in September 2020. Local outbreak plans have been developed and 
shared with key partners. These are supported by a communications package which will 
ensure that schools are able to give consistent messages to all parents which reinforce key 
messages about recognising and responding to possible or confirmed cases of Covid-19.   
 
The infection control and health & safety group will continue to operate in 2020/21 
supporting schools to adhere to the latest guidance on infection control, manage any local 
outbreaks and minimise further disruption to children's learning due to possible school 
closures or bubbles / year groups having to go home to self-isolate. 
 
Everyone has a part to play in managing infection control including:  
 

 The school is the principle point of contact for children and families in the local school 
community and headteachers will use their discretion in terms of implementation. 
Schools plans for infection control will be based on national advice and guidance and 
will include agreed approaches in Portsmouth to support infection control.   

 Public Health will be the key source of advice and support and should be notified of all 
possible or confirmed cases. Where a case has been confirmed Public Health will be 
able to advise on the risk assessment and the impact on the school in terms of self-
isolation. 

Page 37



18 
 

 The council will provide information, support and advice in relation to communications. 
In particular the council's communications team will take a lead on assisting with all 
Covid-19 related media enquiries and confirming and providing factual information about 
the total number of confirmed cases in Portsmouth schools, including the number of 
classes/ bubbles that are currently closed so that pupils can self-isolation 

 Parents and carers have a vital role to play in keeping school safe in terms of 
encouraging their child(ren) to follow the rules around basic hygiene and to look out for 
any signs of coronavirus symptoms and following the prescribed steps if their child 
shows symptoms.  

 
Key priorities for 2020/21  
 
1. Provide comprehensive step by step guidance for schools on minimising the risk of 

transmission in schools and enabling schools to respond appropriately to possible cases 
of Covid-19. This will include the use of checklists, frequently asked questions (FAQs) 
and advice on risk assessments. The guidance will be regularly updated to take into 
account any changes to national guidance and the rate of infection in the city.   

 
2. Extend the above guidance and tailor it to support parents & carers, council staff and 

all professionals and front line workers who work with families and schools.  
 

3. Provide a weekly Covid-19 intelligence summary about Covid-19 infection rates in the 
city.  

 
4. Support schools with the sourcing of personal and protective equipment (PPE) and 

delivery of a basic package of PPE including masks, gloves, aprons, soap and hand 
santizer, with ongoing support and replenishment of supplies as required. This is in 
addition to the package of support provided by the government at the start of the 
Autumn term.  

 
5. Ensure there is a robust and clearly communicated local outbreak plan for possible or 

confirmed cases of Cid-19 in the school community.  
 

6. Work with HR and health and safety colleagues to ensure LA maintained schools meet 
all of their statutory responsibilities for health and safety as an employer and a 
provider of services.  

 

7. Link to the Portsmouth Health Protection Board so that sharing from Portsmouth 
schools can be shared with other partners and vice versa. 

  

Page 38



19 
 

Priority 6: ensure all education settings have 

robust safeguarding policies, processes and 

culture in place 
 

 
Background 
 
In the last 18 months two mainstream schools have been judged by Ofsted to be 
inadequate due to concerns about safeguarding policies, processes and culture.  Other 
inspections have also identified some weaknesses but were not sufficient enough to lead to 
an inadequate rating as action could be taken on the day(s) of the inspection to resolve any 
outstanding concerns.  Evidence has also emerged from a review of completed 
Safeguarding and Early Help Compact Audits that some of the judgements made against 
the standards have been too generous and more rigour is required.  Added to this has been 
the impact of Covid-19 with the vast majority of children being educated at home during the 
lockdown.  Also, there is a strong likelihood of further disruption during the course of 
2020/21 and more children having to be educated at home or receive a blended learning 
offer.   
  
Schools in England are inspected and judged by Ofsted on the effectiveness of their 
safeguarding arrangements. Schools need to demonstrate that they are meeting their 
statutory responsibilities (in line with DfE Keeping Children Safe in Education 
documentation and Ofsted 'Inspecting safeguarding in early years, education and skills 
settings') and that school staff are exercising their professional judgement in keeping 
children and learners safe. 
 
Areas of concern identified recently in Portsmouth as a result of an Ofsted inspection have 
included: 

 Gaps in the Single Central Record 

 Processes for recording and sharing safeguarding concerns and subsequent follow up 
and / or referral to MASH 

 Lack of understanding about the local safeguarding thresholds and escalation 
processes  

 Gaps in safeguarding training for Designated Safeguarding Leads (DSLs), staff and 
governors   

 Gaps in safer recruitment training for school staff and governors involved in recruitment 

 Robustness and quality of behaviour management policies  

 Staff understanding and awareness of areas of safeguarding such as Prevent and FGM 

 How well the school works with external agencies regarding safeguarding concerns 

 Recording of safeguarding incidents - timeliness, security, follow up and escalation  

 How well the school understands the vulnerability of children who are missing education.  
 
Clearly more needs to be done to support schools and ensure the lessons from the last 18 
months are learnt.  Through the Portsmouth Safeguarding Children's Partnership (PSCP), 
schools already have access to a wealth of information, resources and training. This 
includes:  
 

 The Portsmouth DSL Network is in place to support DSLs in schools to share best 
practice, seek support from other DSLs and be informed of local developments. Through 

Page 39

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/912592/Keeping_children_safe_in_education_Sep_2020.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/828763/Inspecting_safeguarding_in_early_years__education_and_skills.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/828763/Inspecting_safeguarding_in_early_years__education_and_skills.pdf
https://www.portsmouthscp.org.uk/


20 
 

the PSCP, training is provided for DSLs. In 2020/21 the traditional managers and DSL 1 
day training course has been broken down into short Masterclasses to enable DSLs and 
managers to update and refresh on the areas which they see are critical for their own 
development. 

 PSCP Thresholds document to guide decision making when determining the level of 
need or risk relating to a child. 

 How to make an effective contact into the Portsmouth MASH using the Inter-agency 
Contact Form (IACF). 

 Processes for stepping up and stepping down through tiers. 

 Early Help Assessments to help identify, at the earliest opportunity, a child, young 
person’s or family's additional needs, which are not being fully met by the existing 
services and to support the provision of timely and coordinated support to meet those 
needs. 

 Support and processes for Multi-Disciplinary Working, Team Around the Child/Family 
(TAC or TAF) and Team Around the Worker (TAW). 

 Portsmouth Safeguarding and Early Help Compact Audit tool which sets out 12 
standards for effective early help and safeguarding practice so that agencies and 
schools can self-assess against them in order to identify areas of good practice and 
areas where improvement is needed and the extent to which safeguarding children is 
embedded within the school.  This framework is used for a formal city-wide audit of all 
services in the city every two years. 

 Local Authority Designated Officer (LADO) liaison, role and understanding the 
notification process. 

 
Key priorities for 2020/21 
 
1. Ensure all schools complete the Portsmouth Safeguarding and Early Help Compact 

Audit tool every two years, a sample of which will be reviewed by the PSCP to ensure 
completed audits are robust and realistic. 
 

2. Raise the profile of safeguarding and the support available to schools through the 
regular LA / Headteacher briefings, Multi Academy Trust briefings, PEP bulletin, etc - 
signposting to the PSCP website.  To include a full update of all safeguarding One 
Minute Guides. 

 

3. Ensure every school in the city has a dedicated safeguarding email 

(safeguarding@....) to improve the communication between PSCP and schools and to 

support Project Encompass. 

 

4. Continue to provide support for schools that are currently judged to be inadequate 

by Ofsted due to safeguarding concerns alongside checks with schools that are due an 

inspection in 2020/21. 

 

5. PSCP to deliver a series of Masterclasses for school DSLs to cover the specific 

safeguarding practice areas (to replace the previous one day DSL training course). This 

will be in addition to the foundation safeguarding courses that are provided in Early 

Help, Child Protection, Safeguarding Supervision etc.  Masterclasses for DSLs will 

cover: understanding the national and local picture; escalation; Portsmouth 

safeguarding thresholds and Portsmouth MASH. 

Page 40



21 
 

 

6. Encourage schools to use the DSL CPD document which has been designed for 

recording formal and informal safeguarding training. Together with training certificates 

this can support and facilitate effective logging of all safeguarding learning in readiness 

for an Ofsted inspection.  

 

7. Working with MASH to develop masterclass topics in order to improve contacts into 

MASH. 

 

8. Develop and deliver a LADO workshop / Masterclass. 

   

9. Raise the profile of online safety issues, resources and information available to 

improve the practice of schools with regard to safeguarding during online/digital learning 

(links to priority 2).   

 

10. Support Governors to be better informed regarding safer recruitment and their 

responsibility and accountability with regard to safeguarding. 

 

11. Develop the LA Link Co-ordinator system ensuring all schools are aware of their 

pupils at risk of harm or in receipt of early help.  Ensuring schools have a regular 

conversation with the LA to unblock any operational barriers to effective joint working to 

protect children.  

 

12. Extend the Team Around the School pilot to enable clarity of service delivery and 

developmental support to improve the response to children with SEMH and 

safeguarding needs. 

  

 
 
  

Page 41



22 
 

Priority 7: promote emotional health, wellbeing and resilience in 
education  
 
Background 
 
Meeting the emotional health and wellbeing needs of children and young people is crucial, 
not least in order for them to learn effectively. We believe that the wellbeing of pupils and 
staff, including that of our school teachers and leaders, needs to be at the heart of all that 
schools and other education settings do.   
 
This work forms part of the Social Emotional Mental Health (SEMH) Strategy (link here) for 
children and young people 2020 - 2023. This has a clear-shared intention to adopt a whole 
system approach to developing and transforming the support for children and young 
people’s mental health and wellbeing.  Fundamental to this approach is the importance of 
partnership working and that social and emotional mental health becomes 'everyone's 
business' in the same way as safeguarding has become 'everyone's business' across 
Portsmouth. 
 
Portsmouth's strategy for improving wellbeing and resilience in education continues to 
strengthen the partnership across services and between services and education settings. 
This work focuses on three areas: 
 

 To improve access to services including direct work with young people and advice and 
training and consultation for professionals. 

 To provide a central source of information 

 To develop self-help and peer support 
 
The impact of the coronavirus pandemic has highlighted just how important this endeavour 
is and in recognition of this a sub group of the PEP Inclusion Group, Children's Emotional 
Health and Wellbeing Group, has intensified its efforts over the course of the summer 
term in 2020 to support the return to school for all year groups in the Autumn and ensure 
there is appropriate ongoing support in order to meet the anticipated increase in demand for 
support. 
 
New or increased anticipated needs as a result of Covid-19 are likely to include:  
 
 Separation anxiety 

 Anxiety of release from lockdown/virus 
fears 

 Isolation from peers and loss of routine 

 Trauma experienced in lockdown  

 Self-harm 

 Increase in complexity of cases 
presenting to CAMHS 

 Anxiety about future exams and 
coursework   

 Bereavement and loss 

 Anxiety with transition 

 Sleep hygiene 

 Potential rise in eating difficulties 

 Later identification of emerging needs 

 Increasing incidence of adverse events 
such as domestic abuse and child 
abuse  

  
The PEP has produced a local package of resources (available here) to offer schools and 
other education settings guidance and support to manage some of the challenges that staff, 
pupils and parents may face in terms of emotional health and wellbeing. To further support 

Page 42

https://www.portsmoutheducationpartnership.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/09/200.1-Back-to-school-wellbeing-document-final-.pdf?utm_medium=Email&utm_source=GovDelivery


23 
 

this there is a dedicated page on the PEP website: 
https://www.portsmoutheducationpartnership.co.uk/covid-19-wellbeing-and-support-from-
partners/ 
 
Action taken in 2020/21 to support schools will link in to the support that is being made 
available by the government through the national Wellbeing for Education Return; a core 
pack of training resources that will be made available during the Autumn term 2020 which 
through the PEP we will tailor and deliver locally to reflect local circumstances.  
 
The establishment of Mental Health Support Teams (MHSTs) in the city to support 
schools is a key element of this work. Following the successful bid to fund a third team we 
can now look forward to having city wide coverage with all schools being supported. MHSTs 
will provide extra capacity for early intervention and ongoing help within a school setting. 
 
The Mental Health Support Teams will: 
 

 Deliver evidence-based interventions for mild to moderate needs 

 Support senior mental health leads in education settings to develop and introduce 
whole-school or whole-college approaches 

 Providing timely advice to staff and liaising with external specialist services so that 
children and young people can get the right support and remain in education. 

  
The Portsmouth Inclusive Education Quality Mark (PIEQM) will support this work 
through self and peer assessment to identify strengths and areas for development in 
relation to inclusive practice. 
 
Key actions for 2020/21: 
 
1. Publish a Welcome Back to School Wellbeing Support package for schools.  

 
2. Implement the Mental Health Support Teams (MHSTs) offer and extend to all schools. 

 

3. Recruit, train and put in place support for Youth Mental Health Ambassadors (across 
all our secondary schools) to work alongside MHSTs. 

 

4. Through the national Wellbeing for Education Return, develop and deliver a package 
of training and support, tailored to local needs, that meets the needs of 

a. School Leaders 
b. Staff providing SEMH interventions and support 
c. All school staff. 

 
5. Review and publish Portsmouth's anti-bullying guidance for schools & colleges and 

our trans inclusion toolkit for schools.  
 

6. Commission, mobilise and promote a Digital Mental Health Service. 
  

Page 43

https://www.portsmoutheducationpartnership.co.uk/covid-19-wellbeing-and-support-from-partners/
https://www.portsmoutheducationpartnership.co.uk/covid-19-wellbeing-and-support-from-partners/


24 
 

Priority 8: ensure all pupils 
regularly attend school  
   
 
Background 
 
In recent years the city has seen improvements in both school attendance and exclusion 
rates.  In 2019 overall absence and persistent absence in primary schools was reduced and 
is below that of our statistical neighbours whilst overall absence in secondary schools 
improved but remains above our statistical neighbours.  Fixed period exclusions for primary 
schools has also improved and is below that of most of our statistical neighbours, however, 
in secondary the rate has increased in line with national increases. Permanent exclusions 
across our schools remain very low and well below the national rate.  
 
However, the fact remains that Portsmouth's pupils do not attend school as regularly as 
their peers nationally and there is therefore still considerably more work to do to improve 
school attendance.  We know that by not attending school regularly children and young 
people are leaving themselves vulnerable to risks which can reduce their life chances.  For 
our most vulnerable young people school will be the only safe and consistent part of their 
lives. Away from the safety and security of school, young people are more at risk of abuse 
and exploitation, taking part in criminal activity and missing out on support for special 
educational needs and mental health problems.  
 
A school attendance action plan is currently in place (add link), the implementation of which 
is monitored by the PEP Behaviour and Attendance Group (BAG). 
 
A high profile school attendance campaign Miss School Miss Out was launched in 2019 to 
support this work.  This campaign is on hold whilst partners focus on welcoming children 
back to school following the closure of schools in 2020 due to the pandemic.  The council 
has agreed with Headteachers that the enforcement of school attendance through penalty 
notices would be an unlikely course of action until at least the October half term 2020. 
 
Whilst schools have remained partially open during the pandemic providing care for key 
worker children and vulnerable learners and from 1st June and 15th June providing care for 
Years R, 1 & 6 and Years 10 & 12 respectively, the fact is that the vast majority of children 
and young people have not attended school or college since March 2020. 
 
The government is expecting all children and young people to return to school and college 
full-time in September 2020. The focus therefore has been on welcoming children and 
young people back to school, reassuring parents and carers that schools have been made 
as safe as possible and that the risk of infection in school is very low, and targeting those 
children who are at risk of not returning to school. Details are set out in the key actions 
below but include: a Welcome Back to School campaign (temporarily replacing the Miss 
School Miss Out campaign); Welcome Back Plans for those pupils who require additional 
support; and wellbeing support to schools (refer to Priority 8). 
 
During the pandemic, systems have been established with schools to track vulnerable 
children and respond to a wide range of issues impacting on families as a result of the 
lockdown, including RAG-rated child level data on spreadsheets, LA Link Co-ordinators 

Page 44



25 
 

attached to schools and colleges and the Children's Hub.  These systems are being 
adjusted to focus on returning children to school safely1. 
 
In addition to the above, there will be a continued focus during 2020/21 on a number of 
areas that impact on school attendance. This includes work to reduce: 
 

 Permanent and fixed period exclusions through the effective use of alternative 
provision (in house and externally commissioned) and use of alternative exclusions 
(where COVID plans allow) 

 Reduced timetables that go beyond 6 weeks without a clear plan in place for 
returning a pupil back to full time education.  The reasons for reduced timetables should 
be: exceptional and limited; short term; require parental consent; Early Help 
Assessments should be considered; and all exclusions should be accurately recorded 
on the attendance register 

 Elective Home Education (EHE) adhering to the principles of the EHE protocol that 
was agreed with Headteachers in 2019 (insert link).  The concern for 2020/21 is that as 
a result of the pandemic, and with so many children being educated at home, that 
parents may want to continue with home education.  However, without the support of the 
school it is clear that many parents will not be able to provide suitable education. 

 
Key actions for 2020/21: 
 
1. Launch and implementation of the Welcome Back to School campaign including a 

tool kit for schools and materials for partner organisations and all professionals who are 
working with families. 
 

2. Application of Welcome Back Plans (short term plans of less than 6 weeks) which 
schools will use to support a return to school for those pupils (and their families) that 
require additional support to get them back into school, co-produced and agreed with all 
professionals involved, and reviewed weekly.   

 

3. Continue to deploy LA Link Co-ordinators building on the success of the summer 
term, working with schools to identify and support those children who are most likely to 
struggle to return successfully in September (over 600 children have been identified of 
which approx. 240 are open to local authority safeguarding services). 3 permanent LA 
Link Co-ordinators will be employed from November 2020 to continue with this work.  

 

4. Helping parents meet their responsibilities to ensure children attend school 
regularly through effective communication / information, advice and guidance, pastoral 
support, intervention through Early Help and MABS where appropriate and punitive 
sanctions as authorised by Headteachers. 
 

5. Ensuring schools are supported and challenged and there is effective leadership 
and management of school attendance in place, through the termly monitoring of 
school attendance data by BAG, half termly Persistent Absence Reviews and audits 
where appropriate, ensuring schools are aware of and access appropriate medical 
provision, focus on reduced timetables that exceed 6 weeks.  
 

                                                           
1 The Children's Hub has effectively been stood down pending any future local or national lockdown 

Page 45



26 
 

6. Working with partners to provide additional needs based support that contribute 
to improvements in attendance, running termly school attendance network meetings 
and continuing to make school attendance everyone's business including health 
workers, social workers, school nurses, Early Help family workers, CAHMS, GPs, etc  

 

7. Continuing to give a high profile to key attendance messages that will include the 
Welcome Back to School campaign during the summer and Autumn term and the re-
launch of Miss School Miss Out during 2020/21.  

 

8. Continued focus on chronic absence (below 50%), sharing information with Missing 
Exploited and Trafficked (MET) group and Early Help, encouraging schools to complete 
an Early Help Assessment and have a Lead Professional in place, working with Early 
Help and / or contacting MASH where school interventions and previous legal sanctions 
have failed. 
 

9. Implement the EHE protocol and address any increase in EHE as a result of the 
pandemic and parents wishing to continue to educate their children at home. 

 
 
 

Page 46



27 
 

Priority 9: invest in school buildings to create additional school places, 
focusing on secondary, even more inclusive mainstream schools and a 
continuum of specialist provision for children with additional needs 
 
Background 

 
Ensuring there are sufficient school places in Portsmouth is the statutory responsibility of 
the Local Authority (LA) but its ability to secure this is reliant on strong collaborative 
arrangements with schools and Multi Academy Trusts. Through the Portsmouth Education 
Partnership the city has a strong and stable culture of collaboration which has enabled the 
LA to ensure there are sufficient school places across the city whilst at the same time 
improving existing accommodation.  
 
Between 2012 and 2017 the focus has been on expanding primary school places in 
response to the unprecedented rise in demand fuelled by rising birth rates, inward 
migration, reductions in the number of children accessing education outside of Portsmouth 
or accessing independent education and the impact of regeneration schemes and housing 
developments.   In response 1600 additional primary school places have been created 
since 2012.  The birth rate is now falling and as a result surplus capacity is now a feature in 
Year R and is becoming so in Year 3.   A summary of the latest position for primary is given 
below: 
 

 Year R forecasts currently show a total pupil number of 2363 which equates to 5.5% 
surplus capacity at Year R. With the decrease in birth rate and the decrease in in-
migration combined with the number of pupils attending out of city schools and 
independent schools and in line with ONS population projection figures, a further 
reduction is forecast year on year until 2023/24 at which point there will be 11.5% 
surplus capacity in Year R.     

 Year 3 pupil numbers are due to peak in 2020/21 with 2424 pupils which will give a 
surplus capacity of 2.3%. The pupil number is then forecast to reduce and by 2023/24 
there will be a surplus of 6.8% at Year 3.  

 
In recent years the focus has switched to expanding secondary school places including 
three major expansion schemes at Admiral Lord Nelson School, Charter Academy and The 
Portsmouth Academy with two smaller schemes at St. Edmund's School and Trafalgar 
School, which are creating an additional 940 places. All five schemes will be completed by 
September 2020.  Our pupil forecasts show that additional capacity will be needed from 
2023to meet the forecast demand until a surplus capacity becomes available again by 
2025. A summary of the position at Year 7 is given below: 
 

 Year 7 numbers are forecast to rise dramatically, following the large rise in primary pupil 
numbers. Year 7 numbers are due to increase year on year until they peak in 2024/25 at 
2239. 

 
Places for pupils with special educational needs and disabilities (SEND) is a far more 
complex issue and a very challenging one due to limited capital funding with no obvious 
source of funding from the government as is the case for basic need funding which covers 
primary and secondary school places.   An increase in special school places also has 
implications for revenue funding and increasing pressure on the High Needs Block of the 

Page 47



28 
 

Dedicated Schools Grant. The issue is complicated further by the diverse range of needs, 
the increasing complexity of need and the fact that our existing specials schools and 
inclusion centres are largely full with limited space for significant expansion.   
 
In light of the above, a SEND and AP (Alternative Provision) phase 2 review is currently 
being undertaken and will report later in the year which will in turn inform the development 
of a 3-5 year SEND accommodation strategy.   
 
In the short term works are underway at Redwood Park Academy and Cliffdale Primary 
Academy to deliver places and improvements to the accommodation; a special free school 
supporting children with Autism and challenging behaviour will open in September 2022 in 
Wymering; and a further expansion of Cliffdale Primary is planned using the space that will 
be left following the re-location of the family contact centre to a new location and bespoke 
accommodation in Cosham.  
 
Key actions for 2020/21:  
 
1. Complete the building works for the secondary sufficiency schemes at: Admiral Lord 

Nelson School; Charter Academy; The Portsmouth Academy; St. Edmund's School and 
Trafalgar School - all by Sept 2020. 

 
2. Complete the building works at Redwood Park Academy and Cliffdale Primary 

Academy in order to deliver the special school places that are needed for Sept 2020. 
 

3. Complete the SEND and AP Accommodation Review (phase 2) and prepare a 3-5 
year strategy which sets out the vision and model for future special school and AP 
places in the city.   
 

4. Continue to work with the ESFA and Delta Education Trust to ensure the special free 
school for autism is built and on course for Sept 2022 completion. 
 

5. Re-locate the Battenburg Family Contact Centre to a new bespoke facility in 
Cosham and undertake a feasibility study to determine how the vacant space will be 
used to support the expansion of Cliffdale Primary Academy. 
 

6. Continue to work with the ESFA to ensure the rebuild of Mayfield School is on course 
for completion by July 2021. 
 

7. Refresh all pupil forecasts and school organisation and place strategy documents 
and submit the annual SCAP (school capacity) return to the DfE.  

 
 

Page 48


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of previous meeting - 15 July 2020
	4 School improvement
	5 Response to Covid-19
	6 Portsmouth Education Strategy 2020 - 2023
	Appendix 1 Portsmouth Education Strategy 2020-2023 final draft EAB report


